

# ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MAY 2023

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR C E H MARFLEET (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors A M Key (Vice-Chairman), M R Clarke, Mrs N F Clarke, K E Lee, Mrs M J Overton MBE, S R Parkin and M A Whittington

Councillors: Mrs W Bowkett, C Matthews, and E J Sneath attended the meeting as observers

Mrs S Woolley attended the meeting as an observer via Microsoft Teams Officers in attendance:-

Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), Emily Wilcox (Democratic Services Officer), Glen Garrod (Executive Director - Adult Care and Community Wellbeing), Theo Jarratt (Head of Quality and Information), Dave Pennington (Head of Property Development), Afsaneh Sabouri (Assistant Director - Adult Frailty and Long Term Conditions), Professor Derek Ward (Director of Public Health), Jennie Clarke (Senior Project Manager - Property Development) and John Waters (Day Opportunities Manager)

### 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from T A Carter and R J Kendrick.

It was reported that, under Regulation 13 of the Local Government (Committee and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, Councillor N Sear be appointed as a substitute for Councillor R J Kendrick for this meeting only.

### 2 DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

None were declared.

## 3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 APRIL 2023

### RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2023 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

# ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MAY 2023

# 4 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR AND LEAD OFFICERS

The Executive Director for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing advised that from 1 April 2023 the CQC had a new duty to assess local authorities. As part of a pilot scheme, Lincolnshire County Council would be the first Council to be visited by the CQC assurance team as part of a pilot phase in July 2023 and would be given an indicative rating. Formal assessments would begin in October.

The Chairman credited the Executive Director for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing and the directorate for volunteering for the pilot scheme which was reassuring and showed confidence in its work.

### 5 PROCUREMENT OF ACTIVE RECOVERY BEDS 2023-2024

Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Adult Frailty and Long Term Conditions, which invited the Committee to consider a report on the procurement of active recovery beds for 2023/24, which is due for a decision by the Executive on 6 June 2023, as set out at appendix A to the report.

The Committee supported the recommendations to the Executive and during the discussion the following points were recorded:

- The Committee welcomed the scheme and emphasised the benefits of the scheme within the care sector.
- The Committee was reassured that an average occupancy rate of 80% for active recovery beds was a good level of usage. There was an aim for a slightly higher level of occupancy, whilst at the same time providing the health and care system with the capacity to manage any surges in demand across the whole county. Furthermore, there was flexibility to increase the number of beds during periods of higher demand.
- The Committee emphasised year-round pressures for the Health Service, not just during winter months.
- The Committee highlighted the benefits of active recovery beds, which could be
  presented in simple terms as a comparison between the daily cost to the health and
  care system of an acute hospital bed, at around £465 per night, and the daily cost of
  an active recovery bed, at approximately £150 per night.
- Some concerns were raised around the purchasing of block beds and it leading to the Council paying for beds that they did not need. Assurance was provided that the cost pressures had been mitigated by the agreed price per bed and the funding for active recovery beds continued to be from a ring-fenced government grant, dedicated to supporting hospital discharge, which had been successfully applied for its intended use. Unlike some other integrated care systems, where much lower levels of the grant had been used.
- The Committee stressed the importance of the government committing to permanent funding, so that the service could continue as part of the core offer.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. That the recommendations to the Executive, as set out in the report, be supported;
- 2. That a summary of the comments made be passed on to the Executive as part of its consideration of this item.

### 6 ADULT CARE & COMMUNITY WELLBEING DIGITAL & TECHNOLOGY UPDATE

Consideration was given to a presentation by the Director for Public Health and the Head of Quality and Information – Adult Care and Community Wellbeing, which provided an update on how digital initiatives were supporting services in Adult Care and Community Wellbeing, as set out at within the report.

Consideration was given to the report and during the discussion the following points were recorded:

- Assurance was provided that the providers of digital care record systems were required to use one of nine nationally approved digitalised systems to ensure that data systems were compatible with each other.
- The Committee highlighted the cost benefits of moving towards a digital programme which would provide more money for frontline services.
- Officers emphasised that the digital initiatives were part of a pilot scheme and would give further indication to the direction of future digital initiatives.
- The services had successfully recruited to two permanent posts to progress the care and wellbeing digital agenda, and the adverts for the temporary roles would be published imminently.
- The Committee emphasised a need to ensure continued to support to those with little access to technology, some of which would be supported by relatives to access services online.
- It was hoped that the proposed digital initiatives would lead to better outcomes for people receiving Adult Social Care. It was emphasised that the initiatives developed were seen as a pilot to allow the service to better understand and develop the digital programme in order to better support families and develop resilience within communities.
- The Committee requested that an update on the progress of the scheme be reported to the Committee in the summer of 2023 or sooner, if common themes emerged prior to that.
- Assurance was provided that audit systems were in place to help fraud prevention and to ensure that people were spending in line with their need for care. It was highlighted that the move to direct payments and people commissioning their own care had led to people spending less for their care.

# ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MAY 2023

#### RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

# 7 NEXT STEPS TO PUT PEOPLE AT THE HEART OF CARE - A PLAN FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE SYSTEM REFORM 2023 TO 2024 AND 2024 TO 2025

Consideration was given to a presentation by the Executive Director – Adult Community Wellbeing, which provided an overview of the Next Steps to Put People at the Heart of Care – A Plan for Adult Social Care System Reform 2023 to 2024 and 2024 to 2025.

Consideration was given to the update and during the discussion the following points were recorded:

- It was thought that reference to better support for unpaid carers within the paper referred to increased respite breaks and improvements in information and advice provided to carers to increasingly build resilience. It was estimated that around 1 in 8 people employed by the Council were unpaid carers and there was an economic argument for supporting carers, including improvements in workforce supply.
- To date there were two confirmed funding source which formed part of the Better Care Fund for 2023/24 – the Disabled Facilities Grant and the Market Sustainability Funding.
- Proposed innovation improvement projects for Lincolnshire County Council included delegation of tasks from health workers to social care workers; new approaches to the use of digital technology and housing and investment in international recruitment, all of which were already in development and allocated within the current budget.
- The Committee recognised the importance of highlighting career opportunities and career pathways.
- Members emphasised the value of international workers within the health and social care profession.
- The Committee raised concerns over the financial burden of adult social care reforms, if introduced.

### **RESOLVED:**

That the report be noted.

### 8 THE HEWITT REVIEW - AN INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEMS

Consideration was given to a presentation by the Executive Director – Adult Community Wellbeing, which provided an overview of the Hewitt Review – An Independent Review of Integrated Care Systems.

Consideration was given to the report and during the discussion the following points were recorded:

- In relation to the recommendation that NHS England and the Department and Health and Social Care should convene a national partnership group to develop together a new framework for GP Primary Care contracts, Members noted that an increasing number of GP's were salaried, a number remained partners of practices on a profit share basis. The potential for the ability of local systems to influence the behaviour of GP's was highlighted, and the potential benefits of population health management due to a better understanding of community need and targeting behaviour accordingly.
- It was clarified that reference to budgetary cuts to the Running Cost Allowance for 2025-26 was likely to be in reference to proposals that NHS Integrated Care Boards were expected to make savings against NHS continuing healthcare budgets, despite the fact that demand for NHS continuing healthcare was growing as a result of population and medical changes.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the report be noted.

## 9 <u>ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK</u> PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to a report by the Health Scrutiny Officer for Lincolnshire, which invited the Committee to consider its work programme.

An report detailing the outcomes of the Care Quality Commission Assurance Pilot would be added to the work programme for the meeting scheduled for 6 September 2023.

The Committee emphasised the importance of reducing the number of reports considered at each meeting to ensure that each item was given adequate consideration.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the work programme be agreed, subject to the above amendment.

### 10 CONSIDERATION OF EXEMPT INFORMATION

### **RESOLVED:**

That In accordance with Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of this item of business as it was considered to contain exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

# 6 ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 24 MAY 2023

# 11 REFURBISHMENT OF ANCASTER DAY CENTRE

Consideration was given to an exempt report which invited the Committee to consider a report on the Refurbishment of Ancaster Day Centre.

## RESOLVED:

That the recommendations, as set out in the exempt report, be supported.

The meeting closed at 12.57 pm